HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX
Telephone:
Fax:
Website:

023 9247 4174
023 9248 0263
www.havant.gov.uk

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA
Membership:

Councillor Smith K (Chairman)

Councillors Davis, Lenaghan, Rees, Sceal and Smith D

Meeting:

Governance & Audit Committee

Date:

Wednesday 10 January 2018

Time:

5.00 pm

Venue:

Hollybank Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road,
Havant, Hants PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below:
Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer
2 January 2018
Contact Officer:

Nicholas Rogers 023 9244 6233
Email: nicholas.rogers@havant.gov.uk

Page

1

Apologies
To receive apologies for absence.

2

Minutes

1-2

To confirm the minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee held
on 26 September 2017.
3

Declarations of Interest

4

Chairman's Report

i

5

Audit Annual Letter 2016/2017

3 - 36

To note the Annual Audit Letter for 2016/2017
6

Internal Audit Progress Report

37 - 50

To note the Internal Audit Progress Report
7

Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter 2017
To note the Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review Letter
2017

8

Monitoring Officer's Update
To receive a verbal update from the Monitoring Officer

ii

51 - 60

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE,
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231
Internet
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk
Public Attendance and Participation
Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and
observe the meetings. Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to
make deputations on matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this
procedure and for further information please get in touch with the contact
officer for this agenda.
Disabled Access
The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.
Emergency Procedure
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will
sound.
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO
No Smoking Policy
The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.
Parking
Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park
opposite the Plaza.

iii

PROTOCOL AT MEETINGS – RULES OF DEBATE
Rules of Debate



















Councillors must always address each other as “Councillor …” and must
always address the meeting through the Chairman
Councillors may only take part in the debate if they are present at the meeting:
video conferencing is not permissible
A member of the Committee may not ask a standing deputy to take their place
in the Committee for part of the meeting
The report or matter submitted for discussion by the Committee may be
debated prior to a motion being proposed and seconded. Recommendations
included in a report shall not be regarded as a motion or amendment unless a
motion or amendment to accept these recommendations has been moved and
seconded by members of the Committee
Motions and amendments must relate to items on the agenda or accepted by
the meeting as urgent business
Motions and amendments must be moved and seconded before they may be
debated
There may only be one motion on the table at any one time;
There may only be one amendment on the table at any one time;
Any amendment to the motion can be moved provided it is (in the opinion of the
Chairman) relevant to the matter under discussion. The amendment can be a
direct negative of the motion.
The mover with the agreement of the seconder may withdraw or alter an
amendment or motion at any time
Once duly moved, an amendment shall be debated along with the original
motion.
If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended shall take the place of the
original motion and shall become the substantive motion on which any further
amendment may be moved.
If an amendment is rejected different amendments may be proposed on the
original motion or substantive motion.
If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved to the original
motion or substantive motion
If an amendment is lost and there are no further amendments, a vote will be
taken on the original motion or the substantive motion
If no amendments are moved to the original motion or substantive motion, a
vote will be taken on the motion or substantive motion
If a motion or substantive motion is lost, other motions may be moved

Voting


Voting may be by a show of hands or by a ballot at the discretion of the
Chairman;
iv








Councillors may not vote unless they are present for the full duration of the
item;
An amendment must be voted on before the motion
Where there is an equality of votes, the Chairman may exercise a second
(casting) vote;
Two Councillors may request, before a vote is taken, that the names of those
voting be recorded in the minutes
A Councillor may request that his/her vote be recorded in the minutes

v

Public
Service
Plaza

vi

1
Governance & Audit Committee
26 September 2017

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
At a meeting of the Governance & Audit Committee held on 26 September 2017
Present
Councillor Smith K (Chairman)
Councillors Davis, Smith D and Keast (Standing Deputy)
99

Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sceal, Lenaghan and
Rees.

100 Minutes
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee held on
21 June 2017 be approved as a correct record.
101 Declarations of Interests
There were no declarations of interest.
102 Chairman's Report
There were no matters that the Chairman wished to report.
103 External Audit Results Report 2016/17 and Audit Committee Briefing
The Committee considered the External Audit Results Report for the year
ended 31 March 2017 presented by Ernst and Young LLP. Andrew Brittain and
Emma Bryant of Ernst and Young LLP joined the meeting for the debate on this
item and answered members’ questions in connection with the report.
The Audit Results Report summarised the findings from the 2016/17 audit. The
Committee were informed that the majority of outstanding items detailed in the
report had been completed and had not impacted upon the opinions contained
within the report. The Committee were also informed that one uncorrected misstatement had been identified in the financial statements, which management
has chosen not to adjust.
The Committee were also presented with the Local Government Audit
Committee Briefing from Ernst and Young LLP, which provided information on
issues and wider matters from the audit sector.
RESOLVED that the External Audit Results Report 2016/17 and Audit
Committee Briefing be noted.

2
Governance & Audit Committee
26 September 2017

104 Statement of Accounts and Letter of Representation 2016/17
The Corporate Accountancy Team Leader presented the Committee with the
Statement of Accounts and Letter of Representation for 2016-17.
The Statement of Accounts detailed the Council’s financial position against
budgets in 2016/17, including core financial statements and supporting
information, while also outlining arrangements for 2017/18 onwards. The Letter
of Representation set out the Council’s response to the external auditors and
explanation of the unadjusted audit difference.
RESOLVED that;
a) The Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 be agreed, the Chairman be
authorised to certify the approval of the Accounts by signing page 30
and the S151 Officer be authorised to certify the approval of the
accounts by signing pages 30 and 39; and
b) The draft Letter of Representation for 2016/17 be agreed, and the
Chairman and S151 Officer be authorised to sign the letter.
105 Internal Audit Progress Report
The Committee considered the Internal Audit Progress Report presented by
Antony Harvey of the Southern Internal Audit Partnership, who joined the
meeting for the debate on this item and answered members’ questions in
connection with the report.
The Committee were informed that the internal audit work relating to the 5
Councils Contract was yet to commence due to implementation timescales, but
the work of internal audit remained on track and there were no significant
issues to be highlighted at this stage.
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Progress Report be noted.
106 Monitoring Officer's Update
The Deputy Monitoring Officer informed the Committee that there had been no
new Code of Conduct complaints received since the last meeting. Of the two
outstanding reported at the last meeting, one had been resolved with no further
action taken and one was currently being considered by officers.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.03 pm

NON-EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
Governance And Audit Committee

10 January 2018

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2016/17
Ernst & Young
FOR INFORMATION
Cabinet Lead: Councillor Lulu Bowerman
Key Decision: No

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To present the Annual Audit Letter for 2016/17.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

That the Committee note the contents of the report

3.0

Summary

3.1

The purpose of this letter is to communicate to the Members of Havant
Borough Council and external stakeholders, including members of the
public, the key messages of the 2016/17 audit.

4.0

Reports

4.1

The Annual Audit Letter is attached to this report.

5.0

Implications

5.1

Resources: No direct implications

5.2

Legal: No direct implications

5.3

Strategy: No direct implications

5.4

Risks: No direct implications

5.5

Communications: No direct implications

5.6

For the Community: No direct implications

Agreed and signed off for publication by:
Head of Service:
Head of Finance:
Head of Legal:

12.12.17
12.12.17
06.12.17

Contact Officer:
Job Title:
Telephone:
E-Mail:

Jason Jones
Audit Manager
jjones9@uk.ey.com
02380 382231

Havant Borough Council
Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017
October 2017

Ernst & Young LLP

Contents

Contents
Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................................................ 2
Purpose.................................................................................................................................................................................................. 5
Responsibilities....................................................................................................................................................................................... 7
Financial Statement Audit ..................................................................................................................................................................... 10
Value for Money .................................................................................................................................................................................... 15
Other Reporting Issues.......................................................................................................................................................................... 20
Focused on your future.......................................................................................................................................................................... 24
Accounting Update................................................................................................................................................................................ 25
Appendix A

Audit Fees ..................................................................................................................................................................... 28

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited
body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk)
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of
auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment (updated 23 February 2017)” issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the
National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We,
as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving,
you may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place,
London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect
of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

EY  i

Executive Summary

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Executive Summary
We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Havant Borough Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year
ended 31 March 2017.
Below are the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.
Area of Work

Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:
► Financial statements

Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Council as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended.

►

Consistency of other information published
with the financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual
Accounts.

Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in
your use of resources

Area of Work

Conclusion

Reports by exception:
► Consistency of Governance Statement

The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

►
►

►

Public interest report

We had no matters to report in the public interest.

Written recommendations to the Council,
which should be copied to the Secretary of
State

We had no matters to report.

Other actions taken in relation to our
responsibilities under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report.

EY  2

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Area of Work

Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO)
on our review of the Council’s Whole of
Government Accounts return (WGA).

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not
perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

As a result of the above we have also:
Area of Work

Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with
governance of the Council communicating
significant findings resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 26 September 2017

Issued a certificate that we have completed the
audit in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of
Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 28 September 2017

In November 2017 we will also issue a report to those charged with governance of the Council summarising the certification work we have
undertaken on the 2016/17 housing benefits claim.
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work.

Andrew Brittain
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

EY  3

Purpose

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Purpose
The Purpose of this Letter
The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues
arising from our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council.
We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2016/17 Audit Results Report to the 26 September 2017 Governance
and Audit Committee, representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported
here are the most significant for the Council.

EY  5

Responsibilities

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Responsibilities
Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor
Our 2016/17 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 21 June 2017 and is conducted in accordance
with the National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by
the National Audit Office.
As auditors we are responsible for:
►

Expressing an opinion:
►

On the 2016/17 financial statements; and

►

On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

►

Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

►

Reporting by exception:
►

If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

►

Any significant matters that are in the public interest;

►

Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

►

If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by thy Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit
Practice.

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on you Whole of Government
Accounts return. The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the
return.

EY  7

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Responsibilities of the Council
The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement. In the AGS,
the Council reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the
effectiveness of its governance arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period.
The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

EY  8

Financial Statement
Audit

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Financial Statement Audit
Key Issues
The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its
financial management and financial health.
We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 28 September 2017
2017.
Our detailed findings were reported to the 26 September 2017 Governance and Audit Committee.
The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:
Significant Risk
Management override of controls
A risk present on all audits is that management is in a
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its
ability to manipulate accounting records directly or
indirectly, and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that otherwise
appear to be operating effectively.
Auditing standards require us to respond to this risk
by testing the appropriateness of journals, testing
accounting estimates for possible management bias
and obtaining an understanding of the business
rationale for any significant unusual transactions.

Conclusion
We obtained a full list of journals posted to the general ledger during the year, and
analysed these journals using criteria we set to identify any unusual journal types or
amounts. We then tested a sample of journals that met our criteria and tested these to
supporting documentation;
We considered the accounting estimates most susceptible to bias;
We performed sample testing on the existence and valuation of prepayments, the
completeness and valuation of accruals and completeness of provisions;
We performed sample testing on additions to the property, plant and equipment
balance and found that these items met the relevant accounting requirements to be
capitalised; and
We evaluated the business rationale for any significant unusual transactions.
In completing this work:
We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material
management override;
We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied; and

EY  10

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or
outside the Council’s normal course of business.
Joint venture with Norse SE
In April 2016 the Council entered into partnership
with Norse Commercial Services and developed a
Joint Venture Company called Norse South East.
Norse South East have been providing operational
Services since April 2016 dealing with refuse and
recycling collections, street cleaning, grounds
maintenance and beach management.
The Council was considering how to account for the
Joint Venture Company within the 2016/17 financial
statements. The Council was yet to receive
information requested from Norse SE and there was a
risk that if timely information was not available from
the Joint Venture then the consolidation may be
inaccurate or incomplete.
Other Financial Statement risks

We reviewed the Council’s proposed accounting treatment for the joint venture
company to ensure that it complied with accounting standards and the Code;
We reviewed the Council's arrangements for checking accuracy and completeness of
Norse SE's financial statements;
We obtained the consolidation entries from the Council and re-performed the
consolidation process to check accuracy. In addition, we assessed the reasonableness
of the consolidation entries in line with group accounting guidance per the Code; and
We reviewed the group accounts and the disclosures made against CIPFA requirements
to identify any matters of non-compliance.
Although we experienced some delays in obtaining the information in this regard, we
did not identify any issues with the accounting treatment for the Joint Venture
Company.
Conclusion

Financial statements presentation – Expenditure &
Funding Analysis and Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement
Amendments have been made to the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2016/17 (the code) this year changing the way the
financial statements are presented.
The new reporting requirements impact the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CIES) and the Movement in Reserves Statement
(MiRS), and include the introduction of the new
‘Expenditure and Funding Analysis’ note as a result of
the ‘Telling the Story’ review of the presentation of
local authority financial statements.

We reviewed the expenditure and funding analysis, Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES) and new notes to ensure disclosures are in line with
the code;
• We reviewed the analysis of how these figures are derived, how the ledger system
has been re-mapped to reflect the Council’s organisational structure and how
overheads are apportioned across the service areas reported; and
• We agreed restated comparative figures back to the Council’s segmental analysis
and supporting working papers.
•

We found that:
• the disclosures were in line with the CIPFA Code

EY  11

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

The Code no longer requires statements or notes to
be prepared in accordance with SeRCOP (Service
Reporting Code of Practice which previously
established ‘proper practice’ with regard to consistent
financial reporting below the Statement of Accounts
level). Instead the Code requires that the service
analysis is based on the organisational structure
under which the authority operates. We expect this to
show the Council’s segmental analysis which the
reporting of the operating segments of the Council in
the disclosures accompanying its financial
statements.

•

the restated comparative figures agreed to Council’s segmental analysis and
supporting working papers with no issues noted

This change in the code will require a new structure
for the primary statements, new notes and a full
retrospective restatement of impacted primary
statements. The restatement of the 2015/16
comparatives will require audit review, which could
potentially incur additional costs, depending on the
complexity and manner in which the changes are
made.
Capacity of the Finance Team
As the Council continues the implementation of the
new corporate services contract there remains an
increased risk that finance staff may leave the
Council. This could result in the Council having
insufficient resource to deliver the financial
statements in line with the agreed audit timetable,
cause delays in responding to audit queries and could
impact upon the quality of financial information
presented for audit. Additionally, as the Council is
working towards a faster close process in anticipation
of next year’s requirement for the financial
statements to be audited by the end of July 2018,
this increases the pressure on the finance team and
could give rise to the same risks.

The Council achieved early closure for 16/17 with draft statements were completed
on 8 June, 3 weeks earlier than in the previous year. This is a good achievement as
there has been decreased capacity in the finance team due to due diligence and
preparation work for 5 Councils contract. However the accuracy of the financial
statements and the supporting working papers was not as consistent in prior years
with more minor errors identified. We also noted that officers due to decreased
capacity officers were not able to respond as promptly as in the past and we
experienced some delays with our requests with minor queries with working papers
and additional requests. In addition, the Council’s current Interim Head of Finance is
the fourth officer to fill the role in 18 months and inevitably this has an impact on
the ability of the team to respond to some queries.

EY  12

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the
financial statements as a whole.
Item

Thresholds applied

Planning materiality

We determined planning materiality to be £1.316 million (2016: £1.334 million), which is 2%
of gross revenue expenditure reported in the accounts of £65.786 million.
We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for
stakeholders in assessing the financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the Governance and Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee
all audit differences in excess of £986,820 (2016: £1.001 million)

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant
qualitative considerations.

EY  13

Value for Money

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Value for Money
We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use
of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.
Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:
•
•
•

Take informed decisions;
Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
Work with partners and other third parties.

Informed
decision making

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Working with
partners and
third parties

EY  15

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

We identified 3 significant risks in relation to these arrangements. The tables below present the findings of our work in response to the risks
identified and any other significant weaknesses or issues to bring to your attention.
We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to
ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.
We therefore issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 28 September 2017.
Significant Risk
Deploying resources in a sustainable manner - Financial
Resilience
Like other local government bodies the Council continues
to face financial challenges over the medium term,
however the 2017/18 budget and medium term financial
strategy show that the Council plans to move to a surplus
position in 2019/20 with a view to building up reserves.
The Council continues to seek alternative solutions to
ensure that local services can be maintained and
supported in the future, in line with local need. For
example, through the 6 Districts Partnership and the
Joint Venture with Norse SE.
As part of the approach to increase their financial
resilience, the Council is considering embarking on a
programme of borrowing to invest, following a model
adopted by another local authority, to build up an
investment property portfolio. Previously the Council’s
property investments have been financed from cash
reserves and there is a risk that undertaking a programme
of borrowing may expose the Council to increased
financial risks if the assumptions and investment
decisions are not appropriate.
Working with Partners - Corporate Services Contracts
In April 2016 the Council entered into agreements for
Corporate Services Contracts with Capita and Vinci
respectively, as part of the Five Council Partnership

Conclusion

We have reviewed the PSAA’s value for money profile tool and did not identify any
areas of concern.
We have reviewed the Council’s out-turn for 16/17 to assess the reasonableness of
the assumptions and reviewed the assumptions in the 17/18 budget and Medium
Term Financial Strategy.
The Council achieved a surplus of £1.197 million in 16/17. We have reviewed the
Council’s 2017/18 budget and MTFS and found that the assumptions used appear
reasonable. We understand that the Council has identified some discrepancies as
part of the 5 Council’s contract which may result in some forecast savings in the
MTFS being reduced, the impact of these will not affect the Council until financial
year 2019/20.
We have discussed the Council’s proposed approach to building a property portfolio
using the ‘borrow to invest’ approach. This is an extension of the Council’s current
property investment portfolio of £16.5 million assets. This approach was not
approved during 2016/17. We understand that at the time of writing the Council is
considering a ‘borrow to invest’ proposal with a decision expected in Autumn 2017.
If the proposal is approved any investment using this method would not take place
until 2018/19 and consequently would be considered in the VFM conclusion for that
financial year.
We have reviewed the PSAA’s value for money profile tool and did not identify any
areas of concern.
We have reviewed the Council’s out-turn for 16/17 to assess the reasonableness of
the assumptions, and reviewed the assumptions in the 17/18 budget and MTFS.
EY  16

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Significant Risk

Conclusion

arrangements. These contracts are due to start in
2017/18 at Havant Borough Council.

We have reviewed the governance arrangements put in place internally at the
Council and overall across the partnership to monitor and enforce the performance
of the corporate service contracts.

These contracts were designed to generate savings of
over £50m across their lifetime of nine years. The Council
will need to ensure that there are good contract
management and governance arrangements in operation
to ensure that these are achieved. There is a risk that if
these savings are not achieved then the financial
resilience of the Council will be impacted.

We have seen evidence that the Council has internal governance arrangements for
the Contracts in place throughout the year through a series of joint arrangements
with East Hampshire District Council including regular Heads of Service meetings
and a dedicated 5 Councils programme board which was established in January
2017. This replaced a previous local Steering Group that operated prior to this
date.
The Inter Authority Agreement between the five councils and the contracts with
Capita and Vinci set out a number of key boards and committees to provide
oversight. We identified the governance arrangements have subsequently been
reviewed during the year and some of the governance bodies have not met as
regularly as intended. However, we have seen evidence overall that there were
regular meetings at an individual council level which addressed the key issues.
During the last year the Councils have identified some issues with the contracts
which are being actively discussed and resolved with the suppliers. From review of
the latest financial projections, these show a decrease in the overall savings being
realised over the lifetime of the contracts. In the case of the Capita contract, the
more innovative elements of the contract, including the procurement and
innovation hubs, need to be re-thought due to changes in context and the five
Councils’ strategies since the ideas were originally conceived. Capita is working
proactively with the councils to reframe these aspects of the contract. The Councils
are also working with Vinci to rectify degradation in projected savings across the
term of the contracts.
For the 2016/17 VfM conclusion, we have taken into account that the Councils
have prudently only included savings related to the core transaction processing
elements of the Capita contract in their MTFS, and that the Five Councils
Partnership is still budgeted to generate savings for the Councils over the lifetime
of the contract.

EY  17

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Significant Risk
Working with Partners – Norse South East
The Council has also entered into partnership with Norse
Commercial Services and developed a Joint Venture
Company called Norse South East. Norse South East will
be providing operational Services from April 2016
dealing with refuse and recycling collections, street
cleaning, grounds maintenance and beach management.
By entering into the partnership arrangement with Norse
the Council has secured planned savings and will need to
ensure that there are good contract management and
governance arrangements in operation to ensure that
these are achieved. There is a risk that if these savings
are not achieved then the financial resilience of the
Council will be impacted.

Conclusion
We have reviewed the governance arrangements put in place by the Council to
monitor and enforce the performance of the Norse SE contract. A Partnership
Board has been formed to provide governance oversight and has met regularly
throughout 2016/17.
The contract has performed well operationally and has achieved the expected
savings identified by the Council when entering into the Joint Venture.

EY  18

Other Reporting
Issues

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Other Reporting Issues
Whole of Government Accounts
We performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the consolidation pack prepared by the Council for Whole of
Government Accounts purposes. We had no issues to report.
The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement
We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the
other information of which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.
We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Report in the Public Interest
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes
to our attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to
consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Objections Received
We did not receive any objections to the 2016/17 financial statements from member of the public.

Other Powers and Duties
We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
EY  20

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Independence
We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Governance and Audit Committee on 26 September 2017.
In our professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been
compromised within the meaning regulatory and professional requirements.

Control Themes and Observations
As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of
testing performed. Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to
communicate to you significant deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit.
We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control of which you are not aware. However, during the
audit we identified observations and/or improvement recommendations for management’s financial processes and controls.

Description and impact

Recommendation

Bank reconciliation

Recommendation 1:

In our 2015/16 Audit Results Report we reported that
our work on cash and bank identified that the Council
had an unreconciled difference of £120 on the bank
reconciliation. We also noted that there was no formal
monthly reconciliation process in place due to
difficulties experienced following the system
migration.
As part of our cash and bank work in 2016/17 we
noted that the Council is now performing the
reconciliation regularly. However, due to continuing
system issues the reconciliation can only be performed
with zero variance on a certain day every week. As a
result, the year-end reconciliation was performed on
30 March 2017 rather than 31 March 2017. The
reconciliation was then updated to the 31 March 2017
but due to the complexities this update is showing a
small unreconciled difference of £570 on the bank
reconciliation. We have reviewed the reconciliations
prior to the year end and note there is a £nil
unreconciled balance meaning that the Council is
properly and appropriately identifying unreconciled
differences.

The Council should continue to work
to resolve the ongoing issues to
ensure a as at 31 March can be
performed as this reduces the risk of
any unreconciled balances.

Rating

Client response

Moderate

Agreed.

EY  21

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Authorisation of journals

Recommendation 2:

In our 2015/16 Audit Results Report we reported that
there was no independent authorisation of manual
journals within the finance department. Without an
authorisation or review process there is a risk that
journal mispostings may not be identified. Through our
2016/17 audit work we noted that an authorisation or
review process for manual journals has not yet been
implemented.

The Council should introduce an
authorisation or review process for
manual journals.

Cashflow reconciliation

Recommendation 3:

As reported above in section 4 and consistent with
observations in 2015/16 there is an unreconciled
balance of £225,000 classified as “other non-cash
movements”, within the Net cash flow from operating
activities note. Despite extended effort it has not been
possible to identify what this specifically relates to.
This has been included in the Letter of Representation
to be agreed by the Governance and Audit Committee.
The Council’s management have assessed that further
disclosure here is not material and would not add any
value to the reader of the Accounts and we agree with
this assessment.
Housing Benefit debtors report

The Finance Team should look to
perform this reconciliation earlier
and/or more frequently to identify
any potential issues earlier in the
year and to isolate the specific time
period in which these differences
arise,
especially
since
this
reoccurring.

Our work on the housing benefit debtors found a
change in the business objects reporting for the
housing benefits system which has meant that the
Council is unable to run a report to support the housing
benefit debtors retrospectively, this can only be run at
the point in time.
This means that the Council cannot easily obtain a
breakdown of the housing benefit debtor balance.

The Council should work with Capita
to develop a new report to provide
this information.

Moderate

There are controls in place to ensure manual
journals entered are appropriate. These include
monthly budgetary control meetings with
Budget holders and Service Heads, regular
balance sheet reconciliations and monthly
Finance review of actuals v. forecasts.
Workflow based journal approval is being
investigated.

Moderate

The Council’s management have assessed that
further disclosure here is not material and
would not add any value to the reader of the
Accounts.

Moderate

Agreed.

Recommendation 4:

EY  22

Focused on your
future

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Focused on your future
Area

Issue

Impact

Earlier deadline
for production
and audit of the
financial
statements
from 2017/18

The Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 introduced a
significant change in statutory
deadlines from the 2017/18
financial year. From that year the
timetable for the preparation and
approval of accounts will be
brought forward with draft
accounts needing to be prepared
by 31 May and the publication of
the audited accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide challenges for both the preparers and the auditors of the
financial statements.
To prepare for this change the Council should consider taking the outlined below:
•

Critically review and amended the closedown process to achieve draft accounts
production at an earlier date;

•

Streamline the Statement of Accounts removing all non-material disclosure
notes;
Bring forward the commissioning and production of key externally provided
information such as IAS 19 pension information and asset valuations;

•

Provide training to departmental finance staff regarding the requirements and
implications of earlier closedown;
•
Re-order tasks from year-end to monthly or quarterly timing to reduce year-end
pressure; and
•
Establish and agree working materiality amounts with your auditor.
As auditors, nationally we have:
•
Issued a thought piece on early closedown
•
As part of the strategic Alliance with CIPFA jointly presented accounts
closedown workshops across England, Scotland and Wales
•

Presented at CIPFA early closedown events and on the subject at the Local
Government Accounting Conferences in July 2017
Locally we have:
•

•
•

Had regular discussions through the year on the Council’s proposals to bring
forward the closedown timetable;
Scheduled a meeting with key finance staff for early October to discuss and
agree with the Council areas for early work which could include testing of major
income and expenditure streams at month 9, reviewing calculation and
allocation of depreciation charges, discussing and agreeing material estimation
procedures as part of the interim work.

EY  24

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Accounting Update
Name

Summary of key measures

Impact on Havant Borough Council

IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 financial year
and will change:
• How financial assets are classified and measured
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated
• Financial hedge accounting
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.
• Transitional arrangements are included within the accounting
standard, however as the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice for
Local Authorities has yet to be issued it is unclear what the impact on
local authority accounting will be and whether any accounting
statutory overrides will be introduced to mitigate any impact.

Although some initial thoughts on the
approach to adopting IFRS 9 have been
issued by CIPFA, until the Code is issued
and any statutory overrides are confirmed
there remains some uncertainty. However,
what is clear is that the Council will have to:
• Reclassify existing financial instrument
assets
• Remeasure and recalculate potential
impairments of those assets; and
• Prepare additional disclosure notes for
material items.

IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with
Customers

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 financial year.
This new standard deals with accounting for all contracts with customers
except:
•
Leases;
•
Financial instruments;
•
Insurance contracts; and
•
for local authorities; Council Tax and NDR income.

As with IFRS 9, some initial thoughts on the
approach to adopting IFRS 15 have been
issued by CIPFA. However, until the Code is
issued there remains some uncertainty.
However, what is clear is that for all
material income sources from customers
the Council will have to:
•
Disaggregate revenue into
appropriate categories
•
Identify relevant performance
obligations and allocate income to
each
•
Summarise significant judgements

The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of
income to the meeting of those performance obligations.
•

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; however as
the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet
to be issued it is unclear what the impact on local authority accounting
will be.

EY  25

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority accounts from the 2019/20
financial year.
Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the current leasing
standard; IAS 17, for local authorities who lease in a large number of
assets the new standard will have a significant impact, with nearly all
current leases being included on the balance sheet.
There are transitional arrangements within the standard, although as the
2019/20 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be
issued it is unclear what the impact on local authority accounting will be
or whether any statutory overrides will be introduced.

Until the 2019/20 Accounting Code is
issued and any statutory overrides are
confirmed there remains some uncertainty
in this area.
However, what is clear is that the Council
will need to undertake a detailed exercise to
classify all of its leases and therefore must
ensure that all lease arrangements are fully
documented.

EY  26

Appendix A

Audit Fees

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Havant Borough Council

Appendix A

Audit Fees

Our fees for 2016/17 are set out in the table below:

Description

Final Fee 2016/17
£

Planned Fee 2016/17
£

Scale Fee 2016/17
£

Final Fee 2015/16
£

Total Audit Fee – Code work

56,171

46,800

46,800

52,271

Total Audit Fee – Certification of
claims and returns

TBC

13,380

13,380

9,240

The proposed final fee includes £5,408 in respect of additional work required to gain assurance over the significant risks in respect of the value for
money conclusion and £3,963 for the group accounts work in respect of the joint venture with Norse SE. This is subject to approval by the PSAA.
We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside of the PSAA’s requirements.
Our work on the housing benefit grant claim is currently ongoing and we will report the final certification fees in our Certification of claims and
returns annual report.

EY  28

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
Ernst & Young LLP
© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.
ED None
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

NON EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

10 January 2018

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2017-18 (October 2017)
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership

ITEM NO 6

FOR DECISION
Key Decision: No

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Governance and Audit Committee
with an overview of internal audit activity against assurance work completed in
accordance with the approved audit plan and to provide an overview of the
status of ‘live’ reports.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

That the Governance and Audit Committee note the Internal Audit Progress
Report (October 2017) as attached.

3.0

Summary

3.1

Under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, the Council is
responsible for:

3.2



ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and that
it has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective
exercise of functions and includes arrangements for the management of
risk; and



undertaking an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting
records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper
practices in relation to internal control.

In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the
Council’s Internal Audit Charter, the Chief Internal Auditor is required to
provide a written status report to the Governance and Audit Committee,
summarising:
‘communications on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its
plan.’

3.3

Appendix 1 summarises the performance of Internal Audit for 2017-18.

4.0

Implications

4.1

Resources:
Internal Audit is provided through the Southern Internal Audit Partnership. The
audit plan consists of 380 audit days and remains fluid throughout the year to
meet the changing needs of the Council.

4.2

Legal:
Compliance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

4.3

Strategy:
Internal audit plays a vital role in helping the organisation accomplish its
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes.

4.4

Risks:
The audit needs assessment follows a risk based audit approach taking
cognisance of the Council’s risk register.

4.5

Communications:
None directly from this report.

4.6

Customers & Community:
None directly from this report although improvements to controls and
governance arrangements will ensure more efficient and effective service
delivery.

4.7

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA):
n/a

5.0

Consultation

5.1

The report has been discussed and noted by the Management Team who met
at the Executive Board on 26 October 2017.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18
Agreed and signed off by:
Legal Services: Abe Ezekiel (Head of Legal Services)
Finance: Lydia Morrison (Interim Head of Finance)
Contact Officer:
Job Title:
Telephone:
E-Mail:

Neil Pitman
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership
01962 845139
neil.pitman@hants.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Internal Audit Progress Report
October 2017
Havant Borough Council

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017

Contents:
1.

Role of Internal Audit

3

2.

Purpose of report

4

3.

Performance dashboard

5

4.

Status of ‘live’ reports

5.

Executive summaries ‘Limited’ and ‘No’ assurance opinions

7

6.

Fraud and Irregularities

8

7.

Planning and resourcing

9

8.

Rolling work programme

9-12

6–8

2

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017

1. Role of Internal Audit
The requirement for an internal audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015,
which states that a relevant body must:
‘Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.’
The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards - updated 2017].
The role of internal audit is best summarised through its definition within the Standards, as an:
‘Independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisations operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes’.
The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management processes, control systems, accounting records and
governance arrangements. Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the Council that these arrangements are in place and operating
effectively.
The Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening of the control environment and, therefore, contribute to the
achievement of the organisations objectives.

3

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017

2. Purpose of report
In accordance with proper internal audit practices (Public Sector Internal Audit Standards), and the Internal Audit Charter the Chief Internal
Auditor is required to provide a written status report to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’, summarising:
The status of ‘live’ internal audit reports;
an update on progress against the annual audit plan;
a summary of internal audit performance, planning and resourcing issues; and
a summary of significant issues that impact on the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual opinion.
Internal audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management,
control and governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives of the service area under review. Assurance opinions
are categorised as follows:
Substantial

A sound framework of internal control is in place and operating effectively. No risks to the achievement of system
objectives have been identified

Adequate

Basically a sound framework of internal control with opportunities to improve controls and / or compliance with the control
framework. No significant risks to the achievement of system objectives have been identified

Limited

Significant weakness identified in the framework of internal control and / or compliance with the control framework which
could place the achievement of system objectives at risk

No

Fundamental weaknesses identified in the framework of internal control or the framework is ineffective or absent with
significant risk to the achievement of system objectives

4

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017

3. Performance dashboard

% Positive Customer Feedback
16%
Complete

Actual
96%
% of plan
delivered
(including
carry forward)
52% Work
in Progress

Target
90%

32% Yet to
Commence

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards / Local Government Application Note
An ‘External Quality Assessment’ of the Southern Internal Audit Partnership was undertaken by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) in September 2015. The report concluded:
‘It is our view that the Southern Internal Audit Partnership ‘generally conforms’ (top grading) to all of the
principles contained within the International Professional Practice Framework (IPPF); Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards (PSIAS); and the Local Government Application Note (LAGN).

In accordance with PSIAS, a further self assessment was completed in April 2017 concluding that the
Southern Internal Audit Partnership continues to comply with all aspects of the IPPF, PSIAS and LGAN.

5

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017

4. Status of ‘Live’ Reports
Audit Review

Report
Date

Audit
Sponsor

Management Actions
(‘High Priority’)

Assurance
Opinion
Reported

Not
Accepted

Pending

Cleared

Overdue

Insurance

01/04/16

HoF

Adequate

2 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

Local Government Transparency Code
2015

06/05/16

HoF

Adequate

7 (3)

0 (0)

1 (0)

4 (2)

2 (1)

Procurement

13/10/16

HoPRQ

Adequate

5 (3)

0 (0)

2 (0)

3 (3)

0 (0)

Accounts Payable

11/01/17

HoF

Adequate

3 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

2 (0)

0 (0)

Business Continuity Planning / Disaster
Recovery

30/01/17

HoOD

Adequate

9 (1)

0 (0)

6 (1)

3 (0)

0 (0)

Health and Safety

06/03/17

HoOD

Adequate

4 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

3 (0)

0 (0)

Information Governance

26/04/17

HoPRQ

Limited

19 (7)

0 (0)

10 (0)

9 (7)

0 (0)

Main Accounting

27/04/17

HoF

Substantial

1 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

Developers Obligations and
Contributions / Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

15/06/17

HoP

Adequate

9 (5)

0 (0)

3 (0)

6 (5)

0 (0)

Norse South East – Governance
Arrangements

19/06/17

HoSC

Adequate

3 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

2 (0)

0 (0)

Risk Management

26/06/17

HoCS

Adequate

3 (0)

0 (0)

3 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

6

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017
Audit Sponsor
Head of Organisational Development

HoOD

Head of Customer Services

HoCS

Head of Finance

HoF

Head of Programmes, Redesign and Quality

HoPRQ

Head of Research and Marketing

HoRM

Head of Planning

HoP

Head of Neighbourhood Support

HoNS

Head of Coastal Partnership

HoCP

Head of Development

HoD

Head of Strategic Commissioning

HoSC

Head of Property Services

HoPS

5. Executive Summaries of new reports published concluding a ‘Limited’ or ‘No’ assurance opinion
There are no new reports published concluding a ‘Limited’ or ‘No’ assurance opinion.

7

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017

6. Fraud and Irregularities
In accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code 2015 there is a requirement on local authorities to publish the following
information with regard counter fraud work:
Local Government Transparency Code 2015

01.04.17 – 30.09.17

Part 2 Requirements - Fraud
Number of occasions powers under the Prevention of Social Housing Fraud (Power to Require Information) (England)
Regulations 2014, or similar powers have been used

Nil

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of employees undertaking investigations and prosecutions of fraud

2 fte*

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of professionally accredited counter fraud specialists

4 fte*

Total amount of time spent by the authority on the investigation and prosecution of fraud
Total number of fraud cases investigated

21 days***
0**

*relates to internal audit staff across the wider SIAP only (does not include other areas of the Council that may affect reported figures i.e. legal, HR, Trading Standards,
departmental investigating officers etc.)
**the definition of fraud is as set out by the Audit Commission in Protecting the Public Purse - ‘the intentional false representation, including failure to declare information
or abuse of position that is carried out to make gain, cause loss or expose another to the risk of loss.’
***relates to SIAP staff only and includes time spent on proactive fraud initiatives to identify or prevent potential fraud that may not result in a formal investigation or
prosecution.

8

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017

7. Planning & Resourcing
The internal audit plan for 2017-18 was discussed by the Executive Board on 02 February 2017 and approved by the Governance and Audit
Committee on 08 March 2017.
The audit plan remains fluid to provide a responsive service that reacts to the changing needs of the Council. Progress against the plan is
detailed within section 8.
8. Rolling Work Programme
Audit Review

Audit
Sponsor

Scoping

Audit
Outline
Issued

Fieldwork

HoSC

Performance Management *1

Draft
Report
Issued

Final
Report
Issued

Assurance
Opinion

Tracker







HoPRQ









Human Resources *1

HoOD









Environmental Health /
Licencing

HoNQ

( on schedule
 Delay)

2017-18 Reviews
Six Council Partnership
Partnership Governance
Arrangements (6 Council
Transition)*1

9





Comment

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017
Audit Review

Audit
Sponsor

Scoping

Audit
Outline
Issued

Fieldwork

Draft
Report
Issued

Final
Report
Issued

Assurance
Opinion

Tracker

Comment

( on schedule
 Delay)

Six Council Partnership – Core Financial Systems (Migrating Systems)
Lease Income / Asset
Management *1

HoPS

Accounts Payable *1

HoF

Accounts Receivable / Debt
Management *1
Main Accounting *1
Treasury Management *1
Payroll *1
Management Reporting *1
Financial Service Transfer
(CAPITA)
Finance System Data Migration





























HoF

HoF
HoF
HoF
HoF
HoF
HoF

Six Council Partnership – Core Financial Systems (Business as usual)
Income Collection and Banking

HoCS

10

n/a

n/a

n/a




Advisory role

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017
Audit Review

Audit
Sponsor

Scoping

Audit
Outline
Issued

Fieldwork

Council Tax

HoCS

NNDR

Draft
Report
Issued

Final
Report
Issued

Assurance
Opinion

Tracker









HoCS









HoPRQ









Strategic Planning

HoOD









Commercial Property
Investments

HoPS

New Homes Bonus

HoP

( on schedule
 Delay)

Six Council Partnership - ICT
ICT Provider Transfer *1
Strategic Objectives

Corporate governance
CIPFA/Tecaff Fraud Survey

HoF



n/a



n/a

Proactive Fraud Initiatives
(Mobile Devices)

HoF



N/A





Proactive Fraud Initiatives
(Fraud Risk Register/Analytics)

HoF

Proactive Fraud Initiatives
(Training)

HoF



N/A



n/a

11



n/a




n/a

n/a



Comment

Internal Audit Progress Report – October 2017
Audit Review

Audit
Outline
Issued

Fieldwork

N/A

N/A





HoPRQ









Planning Development / Fee
Income

HoP







Norse South East – Governance
and Performance

HoSC





Norse South East – Assurance
Mapping

HoSC



Norse South East – Business
Continuity

HoSC



BSOG – Grant Certification

H0F

n/a

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
Information Governance

Audit
Sponsor

Scoping

HoF

Draft
Report
Issued

Final
Report
Issued

Assurance
Opinion

Tracker
( on schedule
 Delay)

Business As Usual




Adequate







n/a



n/a

n/a

n/a – grant
certification



*1 - Reviews related to the Six Council Partnership that will cover HBC and EHDC, which are included in both Councils’ audit plans.

12

Comment

NON-EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
Governance and Audit Committee

10 January 2018

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN (LGO)
ANNUAL REVIEW LETTER 2017
Democratic Services Officer
FOR INFORMATION
Key Decision: No

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To present the Local Government Ombudsman’s (LGO) Annual Review
Letter 2017.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

That the Committee note the content of the attached report.

3.0

Background

3.1

The LGO produces an Annual Review Letter in June of every year. The
letter is their annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to
them about the authority. This letter is sent to the Leader and Chief
Executive of the authority and the administrator for LGO complaints.

3.2

The statistics produced are based on complaints that had been closed
by 31 March 2017. This is why the number of complaints and enquires
received can differ from decisions made.

4.0

Summary

4.1

Seven complaints or enquiries were received by the LGO.

4.2

Six decisions were made by the LGO in the same period, three of
which were referred back to the Council for local resolution and the
remaining three complaints were closed by the LGO after initial
inquires.

4.3

This is reduction in the number of complaints referred to the LGO on
the year 15/16 when the LGO dealt with12 complaints

5.0

Implications

5.1

Resources: There is no financial impact from the outcomes of the
report.

5.2

Legal: No direct implications

5.3

Strategy: No direct implications

5.4

Risks: No direct implications

5.5

Communications: No direct implications

5.6

For the Community: No direct implications

6.0

Consultation:

6.1

Appendices:
1. Annual Review Letter 2017
2. Complaints received in period April 2016 - March 2017
3. Decisions made in period April 2016 - Mar 2017

Agreed and signed off for publication by:
Head of Service: Tom Horwood – 18 October 2017
Head of Finance: Lydia Morrison – 17 October 2017
Head of Legal: Nick Leach – 20 October 2017
Cabinet Lead: Councillor L Bowerman – 27 October 2017

Contact Officer:
Job Title:
Telephone:
E-Mail:

Cynthia Haveron
Democratic Services Officer
01730 234092
Cynthia.haveron@easthants.gov.uk

20 July 2017
By email
Sandy Hopkins
Managing Director
Havant Borough Council

Dear Sandy Hopkins,
Annual Review letter 2017
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) about your authority for the year ended 31
March 2017. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received
about your authority and the decisions we made during the period. I hope this information
will prove helpful in assessing your authority’s performance in handling complaints.
The reporting year saw the retirement of Dr Jane Martin after completing her seven year
tenure as Local Government Ombudsman. I was delighted to be appointed to the role of
Ombudsman in January and look forward to working with you and colleagues across the
local government sector in my new role.
You may notice the inclusion of the ‘Social Care Ombudsman’ in our name and logo. You
will be aware that since 2010 we have operated with jurisdiction over all registered adult
social care providers, able to investigate complaints about care funded and arranged
privately. The change is in response to frequent feedback from care providers who tell us
that our current name is a real barrier to recognition within the social care sector. We hope
this change will help to give this part of our jurisdiction the profile it deserves.
Complaint statistics
Last year, we provided for the first time statistics on how the complaints we upheld against
your authority were remedied. This year’s letter, again, includes a breakdown of upheld
complaints to show how they were remedied. This includes the number of cases where our
recommendations remedied the fault and the number of cases where we decided your
authority had offered a satisfactory remedy during the local complaints process. In these
latter cases we provide reassurance that your authority had satisfactorily attempted to
resolve the complaint before the person came to us.
We have chosen not to include a ‘compliance rate’ this year; this indicated a council’s
compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. From April 2016, we established a
new mechanism for ensuring the recommendations we make to councils are implemented,
where they are agreed to. This has meant the recommendations we make are more specific,
and will often include a time-frame for completion. We will then follow up with a council and
seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. As a result of this new
process, we plan to report a more sophisticated suite of information about compliance and
service improvement in the future.
This is likely to be just one of several changes we will make to our annual letters and the
way we present our data to you in the future. We surveyed councils earlier in the year to find
out, amongst other things, how they use the data in annual letters and what data is the most
useful; thank you to those officers who responded. The feedback will inform new work to

provide you, your officers and elected members, and members of the public, with more
meaningful data that allows for more effective scrutiny and easier comparison with other
councils. We will keep in touch with you as this work progresses.
I want to emphasise that the statistics in this letter comprise the data we hold, and may not
necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include
enquiries from people we signpost back to the authority, but who may never contact you.
In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our
website. The aim of this is to be transparent and provide information that aids the scrutiny of
local services.
The statutory duty to report Ombudsman findings and recommendations
As you will no doubt be aware, there is duty under section 5(2) of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989 for your Monitoring Officer to prepare a formal report to the council where
it appears that the authority, or any part of it, has acted or is likely to act in such a manner as
to constitute maladministration or service failure, and where the LGO has conducted an
investigation in relation to the matter.
This requirement applies to all Ombudsman complaint decisions, not just those that result in
a public report. It is therefore a significant statutory duty that is triggered in most authorities
every year following findings of fault by my office. I have received several enquiries from
authorities to ask how I expect this duty to be discharged. I thought it would therefore be
useful for me to take this opportunity to comment on this responsibility.
I am conscious that authorities have adopted different approaches to respond
proportionately to the issues raised in different Ombudsman investigations in a way that best
reflects their own local circumstances. I am comfortable with, and supportive of, a flexible
approach to how this duty is discharged. I do not seek to impose a proscriptive approach, as
long as the Parliamentary intent is fulfilled in some meaningful way and the authority’s
performance in relation to Ombudsman investigations is properly communicated to elected
members.
As a general guide I would suggest:






Where my office has made findings of maladministration/fault in regard to routine
mistakes and service failures, and the authority has agreed to remedy the complaint
by implementing the recommendations made following an investigation, I feel that the
duty is satisfactorily discharged if the Monitoring Officer makes a periodic report to
the council summarising the findings on all upheld complaints over a specific period.
In a small authority this may be adequately addressed through an annual report on
complaints to members, for example.
Where an investigation has wider implications for council policy or exposes a more
significant finding of maladministration, perhaps because of the scale of the fault or
injustice, or the number of people affected, I would expect the Monitoring Officer to
consider whether the implications of that investigation should be individually reported
to members.
In the unlikely event that an authority is minded not to comply with my
recommendations following a finding of maladministration, I would always expect the
Monitoring Officer to report this to members under section five of the Act. This is an
exceptional and unusual course of action for any authority to take and should be
considered at the highest tier of the authority.

The duties set out above in relation to the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 are in
addition to, not instead of, the pre-existing duties placed on all authorities in relation to
Ombudsman reports under The Local Government Act 1974. Under those provisions,
whenever my office issues a formal, public report to your authority you are obliged to lay that
report before the council for consideration and respond within three months setting out the
action that you have taken, or propose to take, in response to the report.
I know that most local authorities are familiar with these arrangements, but I happy to
discuss this further with you or your Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about how to
discharge these duties in future.
Manual for Councils
We greatly value our relationships with council Complaints Officers, our single contact points
at each authority. To support them in their roles, we have published a Manual for Councils,
setting out in detail what we do and how we investigate the complaints we receive. When we
surveyed Complaints Officers, we were pleased to hear that 73% reported they have found
the manual useful.
The manual is a practical resource and reference point for all council staff, not just those
working directly with us, and I encourage you to share it widely within your organisation. The
manual can be found on our website www.lgo.org.uk/link-officers
Complaint handling training
Our training programme is one of the ways we use the outcomes of complaints to promote
wider service improvements and learning. We delivered an ambitious programme of 75
courses during the year, training over 800 council staff and more 400 care provider staff.
Post-course surveys showed a 92% increase in delegates’ confidence in dealing with
complaints. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training

Yours sincerely

Michael King
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman for England
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Local Authority Report:
For the Period Ending:

Havant Borough Council
31/03/2017

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website:
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics

Complaints and enquiries received
Adult Care
Services

Benefits and
Tax

Corporate
and Other
Services

Education
and
Children’s
Services

Environment
Services

Highways
and
Transport

Housing

Planning and
Development

Other

Total

0

2

1

0

4

0

0

0

0

7

Decisions made

Detailed Investigations

Incomplete or
Invalid

Advice Given

Referred back
for Local
Resolution

Closed After
Initial
Enquiries

Not Upheld

Upheld

Uphold Rate

Total

0

0

3

3

0

0

0%

6

Notes

Complaints Remedied

Our uphold rate is calculated in relation to the total number of detailed investigations.
The number of remedied complaints may not equal the number of upheld complaints.
This is because, while we may uphold a complaint because we find fault, we may not
always find grounds to say that fault caused injustice that ought to be remedied.

by LGO

Satisfactorily by
Authority before LGO
Involvement

0

0

APPENDIX 2

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Reference
16002712
16003980
16008088
16009646
16016391
16017198
16018126

Authority
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council

Category
Benefits & Tax
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Corporate & Other Services
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Benefits & Tax
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation

Received
10-Jun-16
20-Jun-16
06-Sep-16
03-Oct-16
09-Feb-17
22-Feb-17
20-Mar-17

APPENDIX 3

1
2
3
4
5
6

Reference
16002712
16003980
16008088
16009646
16016391
16017198

Authority
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council
Havant Borough Council

Category
Benefits & Tax
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Corporate & Other Services
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Benefits & Tax
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation

Decision Date
08-Jul-16
18-Jul-16
07-Oct-16
03-Oct-16
09-Feb-17
22-Feb-17

Decision
Closed after initial enquiries
Closed after initial enquiries
Closed after initial enquiries
Referred back for local resolution
Referred back for local resolution
Referred back for local resolution

Remedy
Null
Null
Null
Null
Null
Null

